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 begun and completed solely by the homeowner. This exemption applies only to 
 nonstructural changes (refer to the definition of "Structure" in the city zoning ordinance) 
 and does not apply to any activity which changes the square footage of a structure.  

 (e)State licensing required. No person shall engage in electrical, plumbing, 
 mechanical, or low-voltage contracting on any work within the city unless licensed 
 by the State of Georgia. Where a state license is required, every applicant for a permit 
 shall furnish proof, at time of application, that he or the person contracted to do the 
 work holds a valid state license in good standing. Failure to meet this requirement 
 may be grounds for revocation of the permit. (Ord. No. 98-02, § 1, 6-23- 98; Ord. No. 
 2000-13, § 1(B), 10-10-00)  

 Below is an overall list of items which require a permit: 

• Building (commercial and residential -demolition, new structures, and structural 
renovations for primary and accessory structures)  

• Land Disturbance - clearing and grading (new development)  
• Utility (power, gas replacement, under and above ground storage tanks  
• Trades (electrical, mechanical/HVAC, low voltage, plumbing)  
• Signs (wall, ground, temporary banners, billboards)  
• Tree Removal (commercial and residential)  
• Tenant Occupancy (all non-residential existing spaces) 

 
Vendor Question: 
3. Are you looking for a solution to assist with managing City Ordinances? 
 
 City of Morrow Response 
  
 While this is not specifically required in the RFP, if the functionality exists with a 

vendors product, it should be outlined in the submittal.  
 
Vendor Question: 
4. Custom Payroll for Public Safety – Police and Fire:  Could you provide as much 

detail as possible regarding this item please? 
 
 City of Morrow Response 
 

 207K exemption explanation:  
  

Under FLSA, Public Safety (Firefighters and Police officers) are allowed to work longer 
hours before earning overtime (207K exemption).  Regular employees must be paid 
overtime for any hours over 40 hours per week. FLSA allows for Firefighter and Police 
officers to elect a longer work period in overtime calculations.  The City of Morrow has 
opted for a 28 day period for Fire and Police.  FLSA allows for Police to work 171 hours 



in a 28 day period prior to earning overtime.  Fire is allowed to work 212 hours in a 28 
day period prior to earning overtime. 

 
 
Vendor Question: 
5.  Permitting (Alcohol, Precious Metals, and Other Permits): This seems like it may fall 
 under the Business License program.  We have customers now that issue license for 

alcohol sales, but I do not know if this is the same.  Could you please provide as much 
information as possible regarding this item? 

 
 An alcohol permit is a license for alcohol sales. The alcohol and precious metal and 

permits like them include an application and a printed certificate.  
 
 City of Morrow Response 
 
Vendor Question: 
6.  Other Taxes (Alcohol, Excise, Rental Car Excise): This could potentially be covered 

under Accounts Receivable. Could you please provide as much information as possible 
regarding this item? 

 
 City of Morrow Response 
 These taxes are filed and paid based on specific tax return forms that are submitted with 

monthly payments; therefore, they are not necessarily receivables. We want the capability 
to track data included on tax return forms to verify accuracy of tax returns, payments, and 
for reporting purposes.  

 
Vendor Question: 
7. Please address the following issues: 

 Copy of sample tax bill (attached as the last page of addendum) 
 Where is assessment data coming from (Clayton County, GA Tax Assessor) 
 How many core users – 5 to 25 
 How many tax bills – 2,700 bills in 2012 
 Do they want internet payments – Yes, we want an option for Internet payments.  
 Numbers of Customers for sanitation 

  Number of residential sanitation customers (billed quarterly) = 950 
  Number of commercial sanitation customers (billed monthly)  
   185 front end customers with flat bills 
   40 open top customers with flexible bills 

 
Vendor Question: 
8.  Work Orders and Tracking: We only have Work Orders in utility billing.  We do not 

offer a stand-alone Work Orders program.  Is that what you all are looking for 
here?  If not, could you provide details to what your expectations are? 

  



 City of Morrow Response 
 If possible, we want a work order tracking process for Public Works projects, tasks, 

municipal building management, and maintenance, as well as tracking of our residential 
and commercial property parcels.   

 
Vendor Question: 
9. Does the City of Morrow have an expectation of including Source Code Escrow and 

Verification Testing in the current RFP for an Integrated Finance System? Software 
Escrow means that should the vendor go out of business or fail support, that City of 
Morrow will be able to continue business operations. Verification Testing is a 
process, which allows an escrow agent access to a developer’s site to re-build the 
code from scratch and document that process. This is followed by a report which is 
stored along with the code in Escrow, therefore should there be a release; City of 
Morrow will have a business continuity plan.    

 
 City of Morrow Response 
 Source Code Escrow and Verification Testing is not a requirement of this RFP. Our 

evaluation criteria will, however, include the vendor’s capacity, services, performance 
history and references.  

  
 








